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TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DOMICILE :  Malaysia
LEGAL FORM AND PLACE OF :  Public company limited by way of shares
INCORPORATION incorporated in Malaysia under the

Companies Act 1965

REGISTERED OFFICE : 802, 8th Floor
Block C, Kelana Square
17 Jalan S87/26
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS . Lot No.1A, Persiaran Jubli Perak
Jalan 22/1, Seksyen 22
40300 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan
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TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group and of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in business as a total logistics solutions provider. The
principal activities of the subsidiary companies are indicated in note 3 to the financial
statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial
year.

RESULTS
Group Company
RM RM
Profit for the period attributable to:-
Owners of the Company 30,680,795 29 680,768
Non-controlling interests 116,887 -

30,797,682 29,680,768

DIVIDENDS
During the financial year, the Company paid:

- a final single tier dividend of 5 sen per ordinary share of RM1.00 each amounting to
RM35,000,000 in respect of financial period ended 31 March 2014 .

- an interim dividend of 4 sen per ordinary share of RM1.00 each amounting to
RM4,000,000 in respect of financial year ended 31 March 2015 .

The directors propose a single-tier final dividend of 5 sen per ordinary share of RM1.00 each
per ordinary share amounting to RM35,000,000 in respect of the financial year ended 31
March 2015.
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RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year
except as disclosed in the statements of changes in equity set out on pages 17 and 18.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any shares or debentures during the financial year.

DIRECTORS
The directors in office since the date of the last report are:

Mr Lee Check Poh

Mr Raymond Cha Kar Siang

Mr Kwong Hoi Meng

Mr Raippan s/o Yagappan @ Raiappan Peter

Mr Tan Kim Yong

Mr Lim Jew Kiat

Mr Lee Wan Kai

Mr Masaki Ogane

Mr Yasushi Ocka
In accordance with Article 77 of the Company’s Article of Association, Mr Raymond Cha
Kar Siang, Mr Tan Kim Yong and Mr Lim Jew Kiat, retire from the board at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
In accordance with Section 129 of the Company Act, 1965, Mr Raippan s/o Yagappan @

Raiappan Peter is retiring at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, offers himself for
re-appointment.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
The following directors had an interest in shares in the Company and its related corporations
during the financial year required to be disclosed in accordance with Section 169 (6)(g) of the

Companies Act 1965, as follows:

---------- No. of ordinary shares of RM1 each ~-~=v-=---~

At At
1.4.2014 Bought Sold  31.3.2015
The Company
Mr Lee Check Poh
- deemed interest 9,830,438 - - 9,830,438
Mr Tan Kim Yong
- direct interest 10,000 20,000 - 30,000
Mr Lim Jew Kiat
- direct interest 60,000 - - 60,000
Mr Raymond Cha Kar Siang
- direct interest 11,000 - - 11,000
Mr Kwong Hoi Meng
- direct interest 11,000 - - 11,000
MTr Raippan s/o Yagappan @
Raiappan Peter
- direct interest 11,000 - - 11,000
Mr Lee Wan Kai
- direct interest 10,000 - - 10,000
---------- No. of ordinary shares of RM1 each -----------
At At
1.4.2014 Bought Sold  31.3.2015
Subsidiary
- Omega Saujana Sdn Bhd
Mr Lee Check Poh
- direct interest 49 000 - - 49000
Subsidiary
- Piala Kristal (M) Sdn Bhd
Mr Lee Check Poh

- direct interest 49,000 - - 49,000
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DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial period, no director of the Company has received or
become entitled to receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount
of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors as shown in the financial
statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the
director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial
interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Company a party to any
arrangements whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position
of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

1) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of
bad debts and the making of allowance for doubtful debts and satisfied
themselves that there were no known bad debts to be written off and adequate
allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(i1) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary
course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the
Group and of the Company had been written down to an amount which they
might be expected so to realise.

{(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i) which would render it necessary to write off any debts or the amount of
allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

(i) which would render the values attributed to the current assets in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading, or

(iii)  which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation
of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or
inappropriate.
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(¢)  Atthe date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company or its subsidiaries which has arisen
since the end of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other
person, or

(1)  any contingent liability of the Company or its subsidiaries which has arisen
since the end of the financial year.

(d) No contingent or other liability of the Company or its subsidiaries has become
enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months
after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may
affect the ability of the Company or its subsidiaries to meet their obligations as and
when they fall due.

(e) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, not
otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company which would render any amount stated in the respective financial statements
misleading.

(f)  In the opinion of the directors:

(1) the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial
year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature; and

(i) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and
the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (“NYK™), a company incorporated in
Japan, as the ultimate holding company.
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Mazars, Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to continue in
office.

Signed on behalf of the directors in accordance
with a directors’ resolution dated

18 MAY 2015
A
LEE CHECK POH LIM J W KIAT
Director pirector

/
/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of TASCO Berhad, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2015 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the
Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 11 to 83.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in
Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine
1S necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement,
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to
the Company’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Wisma SELANGOR DREDGING - 7TH Fug, SOUTH BLK, 142-A - JALAN AMPANG - 50450 KUALA LUMPUR - MALAYSIA een
TeL: +603 - 2161 5222 - Fax +603 - 2161 3909 - contact@mazars.my - www.mazars.my Prﬁxg’%‘ya'
.

.

HEMBER o

GLOBAL ALLIANGE OF
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS INDEPERDENT FIRIS
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 March 2015 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the
following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to
be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)  We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ report of the subsidiary of
which we have not acted as auditors and which is indicated in Note 3 to the financial
statements.

(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been
consolidated with the Company’s financial statements are in form and content
appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us
for those purposes.

(d) The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any
qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174 (3) of the Act.
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Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 41 on page 84 is disclosed to meet the
requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The
directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with
Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses
in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“the MIA Guidance”) and
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information
is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 174 of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Moeer

MAZARS
No. AF: 001954
Chartered Accountants

Kuala Lumpur

Date: 18 May 2015
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TASCO BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in associated company
Other investments

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Amount owing by immediate holding company
Amounts owing by related companies

Amount owing by associated company
Current tax assets

Fixed deposits with licenced banks

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation reserve

Hedge reserve

Exchange translation reserve
Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Note

15
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As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
254,375,593 207,786,965
4,147,719 4,182,964
1,159,104 1,204,104
259,682,416 213,174,033
148,738 108,646
83,114,096 81,892 279
16,143,574 11,095,449
3,005,268 3,869,506
5,281,172 5,855,940
- 54,037
7,243,936 7,235,889
39,101,118 29,861,167
17,980,202 22,600,207
172,018,104 162,673,120
431,700,520 375,847,153
100,000,000 100,000,000
801,317 801,317
1,400,591 1,400,591
241,838 (36,257)
(147,715) (153,448)
196,801,272 175,120,477
299,097,303 277,132,680
768,916 652,029
299,866,219 277,784,709
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Non-current liabilities

Bank terms loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current Habilities
Current liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables, deposits and accruals
Amount owing to immediate holding company
Amounts owing to related companies
Amount owing to associated company
Bank term loans
Hire purchase and finance lease
Habilities
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Note

16
17

18
19

i1
i2
6

20
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As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
37,520,184 12,873,024
8,456,725 8,770,050
45,976,909 21,643,074
28,450,271 36,879,598
29,844,863 22,953,050
1,556,413 1,810,731
5,630,730 3,345,191
94,448 -
17,275,191 11,292,828
- 13,127
3,005,476 124,845
85,857,392 76,419,370
131,834,301 98,062,444
431,700,520

375,847,153
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TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Page 13

As at As at
Note 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 206,625,043 204,578,232
Investment in subsidiary companies 3 21,542,565 14,262,565
Investment in associated company 4 3,000,000 3,000,000
Other investments 3 1,159,104 1,204,104
Total non-current assets 232,326,712 223,044,901
Current assets
Trade receivables 7 78,471,605 75,192,643
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 8 14,783,056 7,263,164
Amount owing by immediate holding company 9 3,005,268 3,869,506
Amounts owing by subsidiary companies 10 38,518,081 11,837,768
Amounts owing by related companies 11 5,281,172 5,855,940
Amount owing by associated company 12 - 54,037
Current tax asset 7,226,292 7,226,292
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 13 39,101,118 29,861,167
Cash and bank balances 14 12,497,797 17,589,610
Total current assets 198,884,389 158,750,127
TOTAL ASSETS 431,211,101 381,795,028
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 100,600,000 100,000,000
Share premium 801,317 801,317
Hedge reserve 241,838 (36,257)
Retained earnings 171,778,906 151,098,138
Total equity 272,822,061 251,863,198
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Non-current Habilities

Bank term loans
Deferred tax liability

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables
Other payables, deposits and accruals
Amount owing to immediate holding company
Amounts owing to subsidiary companies
Amount owing to related companies
Amount owing to associated company
Bank term loans
Hire purchase and finance lease
liabilities
Current tax liability

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

Note

16
17

18
19

10
11
12
16

20
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Asat As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
37,520,184 12,873,024
7,831,245 8,423,532
45,351,429 21,296,556
26,058,189 30,728,488
24,841,422 21,104,086
1,556,413 1,810,731
37,447,533 40,340,823
2,830,729 3,345,191
94,448 -
17,275,191 11,292,828
- 13,127

2,933,686 -
113,037,611 108,635,274
158,389,040 129,931,830
431,211,101 381,795,028




Company No.: 20218-T

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
{With comparative figures for 15 months ended 31 March 2014)

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative and general expenses
Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of net profit of associated
company

Profit before tax

Tax expense

Profit for the year/period
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operation

Fair value adjustment on cash
flow hedge

Other comprehensive income for

the vear/period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year/period

Note

21

22

23

24

25
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Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
494,305,143 559,613,332 481,236,541 525,795,328
(360,746,553)  (418,368,278) (353,410,116)  (390,598,127)
133,558,590 141,245,054 127,826,425 135,197,201
3,270,653 2,197,158 3,483,689 3,044,906
(94,635,308)  (100,532,487) (90,935,295) (96,959,248)
42,193,935 42,909,725 40,374,819 41,282,859
(1,359,327) (1,470,140) (844,369) (1,470,140)
617,908 620,941 - -
41,452,516 42,060,526 39,530,450 39,812,719
(10,654,834) (11,548,701) (9,849,682) (10,835,208)
30,797,682 30,511,825 29,680,768 28,977,511
5,733 (73,150) - -
278,005 318,950 278,095 318,950
283,828 245,800 278,005 318,950
31,081,510 30,757,625 29,958,863 29,296,461
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Profit attributable to:

Note

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year/period

Total comprehensive income

attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the

year/period

Basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company

(sen per share)

26

Page 16

Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
30,680,795 30,409,124 29,680,768 28,977,511
116,887 102,701 - -
30,797,682 30,511,825 29,680,768 28,977,511
30,964,623 30,654,924 29,958,863 29,296,461
116,887 102,701 - -
31,081,510 30,757,625 29,058,863 29,296,461

30.68 30.41

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Company No.: 20218-T

Company

TASCO BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Note

Balance at 1 January 2013

Total comprehensive income

for the period

Dividends paid

27

Balance at 31 March 2014

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Dividends paid

27

Balance at 31 March 2015

Page 18

Lo Non distributable ---------- > Distributable

Share Share Hedge Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
RM RM RM RM RM
100,000,000 801,317 (355,207 131,128,122 231,574,232
- - 318,950 28,977,511 29,296,461

. - - (9,007,495}  (9,007,495)
100,000,000 801,317 (36,257) 151,098,138 251,863,198
- - 278,095 29,680,768 29,958,863

- - - (9,000,000) (9,000,000)
100,000,000 801,317 241,838 171,778,906 272,822,061

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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TASCO BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

(With comparative figures for 15 months ended 31 March 2014)

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Allowance for doubtful debts

Depreciation

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss of other investment

Property, plant and equipment written off

Loss on disposal of investment in quoted shares

Share of net profit of associated company

Interest income

Dividend income

Interest expense

Unrealised gain on foreign exchange

Operating profit before working capital changes
Changes in inventories
Changes in receivables
Changes in payables

Cash generated from operations

Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Page 19

Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
41,452,516 42,060,526 39,530,450 39,812,719
421,335 738,828 421,335 738,828
16,716,676 19,781,653 16,214,040 19,424 311
(156,259) (411,563) {135,859) (387,563)
45,000 - 45,000 -
- 30,402 - 30,402
- 8,968 - 8,968
(617,908) (620,941) - -
(799,165) (939,372) (799,165) (939,372)
- (74,298) (653,153)  (1,162,886)
1,359,327 1,470,140 844,369 1,470,140
(274,577) - (274,577} -
58,146,945 62,044,343 55,192,440 58,995,547
(40,092) {6,629) - -
1,491,057  (22,468,220) (3,345,865) (14,406,408)
(4,637,766) 19,360,085 (637,183) 16,003,955
54,960,144 58,920,579 51,209,392 60,593,094
(8,305,133) (10,341,356) (7,508,284) (9,737,087
46,655,011 48,588,223 43,701,108 50,856,007
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Note

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 28
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of other investment
Investment in subsidiary company 34
Advances 1o subsidiary companies
Interest received
Dividends received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Drawdown of term loan

Repayment of term loan

Advances from subsidiary companies

Payment of hire purchase and finance
lease liabilities

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT
FORWARD

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED
FORWARD

Represented by:

Fixed deposits with a licensed banks
Cash and bank balances
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Group Company

Year 15 months Year 15 months

ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
(51,513,169) (31,801,079} (16,292,581) (26,226,962)
1,058,841 853,400 1,037,905 829,400

- 17,032 - 17,032
(7,173,824) - (7,280,000) -
- - (26,872,213)  (6,655,965)

799,165 939,372 799,165 939,372

- 74,298 - 74,298
(56,828,987) (29,916,977 (48,607,724} (31,022,825)
39,000,000 6,000,000 39,000,000 6,000,000
(14,053,330) (14,057,678) (14,053,330} (14,057,678)
- - (6,251,139)  (3,596,692)
(13,127) (297,577) (13,127) (297,577)
(1,359.327)  (1,470,140) (844,369)  (1,470,140)
(9,000,000)  (9,007,495) (9,000,000  (9,007,495)
14,574,216  (18,832,890) 8,838,035 (22,429,582)
4,400,240 (161,644) 3,931,419 {2,596,400)
52,461,374 52,698,553 47,450,777 50,047,177
219,706 (75,535) 216,718 -
57,081,320 52,461,374 51,598,914 47,450,777
39,101,118 29,861,167 39,101,118 29,861,167
17,980,202 22,600,207 12,497,797 17,589,610
57,081,320 52,461,374 51,598,915 47,450,777

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

l. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”) issued
by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“the MASB”), International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia.

The measurement bases applied in the preparation of the financial statements
include historical cost, recoverable value, realisable value and fair value.
Estimates are used in measuring these values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fair value measurements are categorised as follows:

Level 1:  Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2:  Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3:  Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is
also the Group’s and the Company’s functional currency.
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(b)

(©)
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Application of new or revised standards

In the current year, the Group and the Company applied a number of new
standards and amendments that became effective mandatorily for the
accounting periods beginning on or after I April 2014.

The adoption of these new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations have not had any significant impact on the financial statements
of the Group and of the Company.

Standards issued that are not yet effective

The Group and the Company have not applied the following standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued by the MASB but are
not yet effective:

Effective date
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee I July 2014
MFRS 119 Contributions
Amendments to Annual Improvements to MFRSs I July 2014
MFRS 2, MFRS 3,  2010-2012 Cycle
MFRS 8§, MFRS
116, MFRS 124,
MFRS 138
Amendments to Annual Improvements to MFRSs 1 July 2014
MFRS 3, MFRS 2011-2013 Cycle
13, MFRS 140
MEFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods 1 January 2016
MFRS 116 and of Depreciation and Amortisation
MFRS 138
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of 1 January 2016
MFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to Amendments Resulting from the 1 January 2016
MFRS 141 Incorporation of Bearer Plants into
the scope of MFRS 116
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
MFRS 127 Statements
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets 1 January 2016
MFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
MFRS 128 Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to Annual Improvements to MFRSs 1 January 2016

MFRS 5, MFRS 7,

MFRS 119 and
MERS 134

2012-2014 Cycle
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(d)

Effective date

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016

MFRS 101
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the 1 January 2016

MFRS 10, MFRS Consolidation Exception

12 and MFRS 128
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2017
Customers

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

Except as otherwise indicated below, the adoption of the above new standards,
amendments and interpretation are not expected to have significant impact on
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company.

MEFRS 9, Financial Instruments

MFRS 9 addresses the classification, recognition, derecognition, measurement
and impairment of financial assets and financial liabilities, as well as general
hedge accounting. It replaces MFRS 139. MFRS 9 requires financial assets to
be classified into two measurement categories, i.e. at fair value and at
amortised cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the MFRS 139
requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to changes in
an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch. MFRS 9 contains a new impairment
model based on expected losses (as opposed to the ‘incurred loss’ model under
MFRS 139), i.e. a loss event need not occur before an impairment loss is
recognised, which will result in earlier recognition of losses.

The Group and Company are currently assessing the impact to the financial
statements upon adopting MFRS 9, and intend to adopt MERS 9 on the
mandatory effective date.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the accounting
policies. It also requires the use of accounting estimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts of asset and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the reporting date, and reported amounts of income and
expenses during the financial year.
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Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, historical experiences and various other factors,
including expectations for future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ from these
estimates.,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources associated
with estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have significant risks of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(1) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
to write off their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives. Management estimates the useful life of these assets to be
from 5 to 50 years.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s property, plant
and equipment as at 31 March 2015 were RM254,375,593 and
RM206,625,043 (2014: RM?207,786,965 and RM204,578,232)

respectively.

Changes in the expected level of usage, physical wear and tear and
technological development could impact the economic useful lives and
residual values of these assets, and therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised.

(ii)  Impairment of loans and receivables

The collectability of receivables is assessed on an on going basis. An
allowance for doubtful debts is made for any account considered to be
doubtful of collection.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s trade and other
receivables as at 31 March 2015 were RMI105,251,208 and
RM137,987.692 (2014: RMI100,089.941 and RMI101,671,954),

respectively.
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(e)

)

(iii)

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that receivables have been impaired. To
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, a
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the capital
allowances and deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation
of the provision for income tax. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business.

The Group and the Company recognises liabilities for expected tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s tax assets as at
31 March 2015 were RM7,243,936 and RM7,226,292 (2014:
RM?7,235,889 and RM7,226,292), respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s tax liabilities as
at 31 March 2015 were RM3,005,476 and RM2,933,686 (2014:
RM124,845 and nil), respectively.

Subsidiaries

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary
companies are measured at cost less impairment losses. Impairment losses are
charged to profit or loss.

On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts of the subsidiaries disposed of is recognised in profit or loss.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of

the Company and of all its subsidiaries and entities controlled by the Company

(including structured entities) made up to the end of the financial year.
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The Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all the
following:

(i) power over the investee;

(ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

(iii) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns.

Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control only if the rights
are substantive.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control.

Consolidation of an investee shall begin from the date the Company obtains
confrol of the investee and cease when the Company loses control of the
investee.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated in
full on consolidation and the consolidated financial statements reflect external
transactions only.

The Company attributes the profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. The Company also attributes total comprehensive income
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes of Interests in Subsidiaries

The changes of interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control
are treated as equity transactions between the Group and non-controlling
interests. Any gain or loss arising from equity transactions is recognised
directly in equity.

Loss of control

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary:

(1) It derecognises the assets and liabilities, non-controlling interests, and

other amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to the former subsidiary.
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€]

(it) It recognises any gain or loss in profit or loss aftributable to the Group,
which is calculated as the difference between:

(a) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received, if
any, from the transaction, event or circumstances that resulted
in the loss of control, plus any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is
lost; and

(b) the net carrying amount of assets, liabilities, goodwill and any
non-controlling interests attributable to the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost.

(iii) It recognises any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair
value when control is lost and subsequently accounts for it and for any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary in accordance with
relevant MFRS. That fair value shall be regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset in accordance with MFRS 139 or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

Business combination

The Group accounts for each business combination by applying the acquisition
method.

The consideration transferred in a business combination shall be measured at
fair value, which shall be calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, the liabilities incurred by the
Group and the equity interests issued by the Group.

The Group accounts for acquisition related costs as expenses in the period in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

For each business combination, the Group measures at the acquisition date,
components of non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation at either: (i) fair value; or (i1) the
present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

On the date of acquisition, goodwill is measured as the excess of (a) over (b)
below:

(a) The aggregate of:
)] the fair value of consideration transferred,;

(i) the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; and
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(b

(ili)  in a business combination achieved in stages, the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the investee.

(b) The net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

In a business combination where the amount in (b) above exceeds the
aggregate of the amounts in (a) above, the Group recognises the resulting gain
in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

Associated company

An associated company is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary company nor an interest in a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence.

Investments in associated companies are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associated companies are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associated companies.

The Group’s share of net profits or losses and changes recognised directly in
the other comprehensive income of the associated companies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, respectively.

An investment in an associated company is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the Group obtains significant influence until
the date the Group ceases to have significant influence over the associated
company.

Premium relating to an associated company is included in the carrying value of
the investment and it is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in 1(1) (ii) below.

Discount on acquisition is excluded from the carrying amount of the
investment and is instead included as income in the determination of the
Group’s share of the associated company’s profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and ifs associated
companies are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated
companies.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment
in an associated company diminishes by virtue of losses to zero, unless the
Group has legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.

The results and reserves of associated companies are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements based on audited and/or unaudited financial
statements that conform to those used by the Group for like transaction in
similar circumstances.

The results and reserves of associated companies are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements based on audited financial statements made
up to a date not more than 3 months before or after the Group’s financial year
end date.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any
retained interest in the former associate is recognised at fair value on the date
when significant influence is lost. Any gain or loss arising from the loss of
significant influence over an associate is recognised in profit or loss.

When changes in the Group’s interests in an associate that do not result in a
loss of significant influence, the retained interests in the associate are not
remeasured. Any gain or loss arising from the changes in the Group’s interests
in the associate is recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are
measured at cost less impairment losses, if any. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the associate disposed of is recognised in profit or loss.
Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to both a financial asset of
one enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
enterprise.
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is recognised in the financial statements when,

and only when, the Company or its subsidiaries becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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(ii)

A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial instrument not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial instrument.

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity (“HTM™) investments or available-for-sale (“AFS™) financial
assets as appropriate. The Group and the Company determines the
classification of the financial assets as set out below upon initial
recognition.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group and the Company do not
have financial assets categorised as FVTPL and HTM investments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not
quoted in an active market, trade and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment losses. Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired and through the amortisation process.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets category comprises investment in equity and debt
securities instruments and transferable corporate club memberships
that are not held for trading.

Transferable corporate club memberships and investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost.

Other financial assets categorised as AFS financial assets are
subsequently measured at their fair values with the gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items
and gains and losses of hedged items attributable to hedge risks of fair
value hedges which are recognised in profit or loss.
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(iii)

(iv)

On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive
income into profit or loss. Interest calculated for a debt instrument
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

All financial assets, except for those measured at FVTPL are subject to
review for impairment 1 (1)(1).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
FVTPL or financial liabilities at amortised cost.

In the ordinary course of business, the Group and the Company do not
designate any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or
the financial asset is transferred to another party without retaining
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received together
with any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in equity is
recognised in the profit or loss.

A financial liability or part of it is derecognised when, and only when,
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or has
expired.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward

currency contracts and currency swap contracts to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations.



Company No.: 20218-T Page 32

On initial recognition, these derivative financial instruments are
recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contracts
are entered into, and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
each reporting date.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to profit or
loss.

The fair value of forward contracts is determined by reference to
current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity
profiles. The fair value of swap contracts is determined by reference to
available market information. Where the quoted market prices are not
available, fair values are based on management’s best estimate and are
arrived by reference to the market prices of another contract that is
substantially similar.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates
and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to
apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
identification of the hedge item or transaction, the hedging instrument,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how effectiveness will be
measured throughout its duration. Such hedges are expected to offset
the changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the reporting period for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedge

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
and could affect the profit or loss.

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, while the ineffective portion is recognised in the profit or loss.
Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the
profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as
when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item is the
cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts taken to equity are
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability. However, loss recognised in other comprehensive income that
will not be recovered in one or more future periods is reclassified from
other comprehensive income into profit or loss.
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Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the
hedging instrument expired or is sold, terminated or exercised, the
hedge is no longer highly effective, the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur or the hedge designation is revoked.

[f the hedge is for a forecast transaction, the cumulative gain or loss on
the hedging instrument remains in other comprehensive income until
the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, any related cumulative gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income on the hedging instrument
is reclassified from other comprehensive income into profit or loss.

()] Property, plant and equipment

()

(i)

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment inciudes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset. Dismantlement,
removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of property,
plant and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or
restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal.
On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation

Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated while
leasehold land and buildings are amortised on straight-line basis over
the remaining period of the lease.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the depreciable amount of other
property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The depreciable amount is determined after
deducting residual value from cost.
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(k)

M

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:

%

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining
period of the lease

Freehold building 2
Motor vehicles 14 -20
Plant and machinery 10-20
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 5-15
Air conditioners, office renovation and pallets 10

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

[nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost being
the cost of purchase, is determined on the first-in-first-out basis. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less selling and distribution costs and all other estimated cost to completion.

Impairment

(@

Financial assets

All financial assets (except for financial assets categorised as FVTPL,
investment in subsidiaries and investment in associated company) are
assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a
result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For an
equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment.

Assets carried at amortised cost

An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in
profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate ruling at the date of acquisition
of the financial asset. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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(i)

AFS financial assets

An impairment loss in respect of AFS financial assets is recognised in
profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
the asset’s current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised.

Where a decline in the fair value of an AFS financial asset has been
recognised in the other comprehensive income, the cumulative loss in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity and recognised
to profit or loss.

An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is
carried at cost is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an
investment in an unquoted equity instrument is not permitted.

Non-financial assets
Tangible and intangible assets

Tangible and intangible assets are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that
are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised
in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous
revaluation.

Any reversal of an impairment loss as a result of a subsequent increase
in recoverable amount should not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation, if
applicable) had no impaimment loss been previously recognised for the
asset.
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(m)

()

(0)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not
remeasured subsequently.

Cost incurred directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments are
accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at nominal value.
Any proceeds received in excess of the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued are accounted for as share premium.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group and the
Company have a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Incorne recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the Company and when the revenue can be
reliably measured, on the following bases:

@) Revenue from freight forwarding, transportation and warehousing
services are recognised in profit or loss as and when services are
rendered.

(i)  Truck rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specific tenure of the respective leases.

(iii)  Forwarding agency commission is recognised as and when services are
rendered.

(iv)  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.

(v)  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

(vi)  Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the specific
tenure of the respective leases.

(vii) Insurance agency commission income is recognised upon the execution
or renewal of insurance policies.
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(p)

Foreign currencies

®

(i)

Transactions and balances in foreign currencies

Foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the rate
of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and
the translation of monetary items are included in profit or loss for the
period.

Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of historical costs
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the date of the transaction.

Non-monetary items which are measured at fair values denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the date when the fair value was determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, any corresponding exchange gain or loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
corresponding exchange gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation of foreign operations

For consolidation purposes, all assets and liabilities of foreign
operations that have a functional currency other than RM (including
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of the
foreign operations) are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the
reporting date.

Income and expense items are translated at exchange rates
approximating those ruling on transaction dates.

All exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations are dealt with through the exchange
translation reserve account within other comprehensive income. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange translation
reserves relating to that foreign operation are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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)

Leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a
payment or series of payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of

time.

(1) Finance lease
A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not
eventually be transferred.
Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases are
stated at amounts equal to the lower of their fair values and the present
value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the leases, less
accurnulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
In calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments, the
discount rate is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is
determinable; if not, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used.

(il)  Operating lease
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.
Operating lease income or operating lease expense are credited or
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Employee benefits

(1) Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, paid annual leave, paid sick
leave and non-monetary benefits are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the associated services are rendered by employees.

(i1)  Post-employment benefits

The Company and its Malaysian subsidiary companies pay monthly
contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“the EPF”) which is a
defined contribution plan.

The legal or constructive obligation of the Company and its Malaysian
subsidiary companies is limited to the amount that they agree to
contribute to the EPF. The contributions to the EPF are charged to
profit or loss in the period to which they relate.
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(s)

(®)

The Company’s foreign subsidiary company may make contributions to
its country’s statutory pension schemes which are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use of sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss
using the effective interest method.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred
tax included in the determination of profit or loss for the financial year.

On the statement of financial position, a deferred tax liability is recognised for
taxable temporary differences while a deferred tax asset is recognised for
deductible temporary differences and tax losses only to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available in future against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

No deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences arising from the initial
recognition of:

(1) goodwill, or

(iii)  an asset or liability which is not a business combination and at the time
of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the asset or liability is expected to be
recovered or settled, and based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or when the liability is settled.

Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged,
whether in the same or a different period, directly to other comprehensive
income.
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)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of bank overdrafis.

Operating segment

Segment reporting in the financial statements is presented on the same basis as
it is used by management internally for evaluating operating segment
performance and in deciding how to allocate resources to each operating
segment. Operating segments are distinguishable components of the Group
that engage in business activities from which they may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed
regularly by the chief operating decision maker to decide how to allocate
resources to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

Segment revenue and expense, are those amounts resulting from operating
activities of a segment that are directly atiributable to the segment and a
relevant portion that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to the segment.

Segment revenue and expense, are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment.

Segment assets and liabilities information are neither included in the internal
management reports nor provided regularly to the management. Hence no
disclosures are made on segment assets and liabilities.
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Included in property, plant and equipment are assets acquired under unexpired hire
purchase and finance lease arrangements with net carrying amount as follows:

Group/Company

As at As at

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

RM RM

Motor vehicles - 205,010

3. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Company

As at As at

31.3.2015 31.3.2014

RM RM

Unquoted shares at cost 21,542,565 14,262,565

The Group has assessed the non-controlling interest in the subsidiaries of the Group
and has determined that the non-controlling interest are not individually material to
the Group’s financial position, performance and cash flows.

Details of the subsidiary companies are as follows:

Equity interest

As at As at Country of
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 incorporation Principal activities
% %

Baik Sepakat Sdn Bhd 100 100 Malaysia  Truck rental and
insurance agency
services

Tunas Cergas Logistik 100 100 Malaysia  Truck rental, in-

Sdn Bhd house truck
repair and
maintenance and
the provision
of other related
logistics services

Emulsi Teknik 100 100 Malaysia  Truck rental and

Sdn Bhd logistics services
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Equity interest
As at As at Country of
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 incorporation  Principal activities
% %
* Trans-Asia Shipping 100 100 Singapore  Customs broking,
Pte Ltd handling agency
and freight
forwarding
services
Maya Kekal Sdn Bhd 100 100 Malaysia  Trading
Precious Fortunes Sdn 100 100 Malaysia ~ Warehouse rental
Bhd
Tasco Express Sdn 100 100 Malaysia ~ Dormant
Bhd
Titian Pelangi Sdn 100 - Malaysia =~ Warehouse rental
Bhd
Omega Saujana Sdn 51 51 Malaysia  Freight forwarding
Bhd services
Piala Kristal (M) Sdn 51 51 Malaysia  Freight forwarding
Bhd services
*  Audited by a member firm of Mazars in Singapore
4. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY
Group Company
Asat As at As at Asat
31.3.2015  31.3.2014 31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
Unquoted shares at cost 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Group’s share of post-
acquisition reserves and
retained profits less losses 1,147,719 1,182,964 - -
4,147,719 4,182,964 3,000,000 3,000,000
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The associated company, incorporated in Malaysia, is as follows:
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Principal activities

50 Warehouse rental

Equity interest
As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
% %
Agate Electro Supplies Sdn Bhd
(“AESSB”) 50

The financial year end of Agate Electro Supplies Sdn Bhd is 31 December. The
financial year end of Agate Electro Supplies Sdn Bhd is determined by the controlling
sharcholders of Agate Electro Supplies Sdn Bhd since its incorporation. For the
purpose of applying the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, the
audited financial statements of Agate Electro Supplies Sdn Bhd for the year ended 31

December 2014 have been used.

The Group’s share in the results of the associated company is as follow:

Group’s share of profit
Group’s share of other comprehensive income

Group’s share of total comprehensive income

5. OTHER INVESTMENTS

Classified as AFS financial assets

Unquoted shares at cost

Transferable corporate club memberships
at cost

Impairment loss - unquoted shares

Year Year
ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
617,908 620,941
617,908 620,941
Group/Company
As at Asat
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
367,700 367,700
856,403 856,403
1,224,103 1,224,103
(64,999) (19,999)
1,159,104 1,204,104
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6. INVENTORIES

Inventories represent parts and consumables at cost.

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Group Company
As at Asat As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014  31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
Gross trade receivables 85,783,719 84,240,567 81,141,228 77,440,931

Allowance for doubtful debts  (2,669,623) (2.248,288) (2,669,623) (2.248,288)

83,114,096 81,992,279 78,471,605 75,192,643

The currency exposure profile of gross trade receivables is as follows:

Group Company
Asat As at As at Asat
31.3.2015  31.3.2014 31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
- Ringgit Malaysia 78,556,703 76,392,378 76,207,334 75,155,568
- United States Dollar 3,063,546 6,041,455 3,063,546 1,754,557
- Singapore Dollar 4,142,350 1,794,284 1,849,228 518,356
- Thai Baht 21,120 12,450 21,120 12,450

85,783,719 84,240,567 81,141,228 77,440,931

Normal credit terms range from 30 to 60 days. For long outstanding customers and
related parties, the credit terms may be extended to 90 days based on the discretion of

the management.
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Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014  31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
Other receivables 3,608,370 5,122,620 3,460,109 1,776,944
Deposits 3,805,102 2,719,307 2,814,257 2,608,864
Prepayments 2,292,902 2,777,270 2,071,490 2,401,104
Derivative financial assets 6,437,200 476,252 6,437,200 476,252
16,143,574 11,095,449 14,783,056 7,263,164

The currency exposure profile of gross other receivables is as follows:

Group Company
Asat As at Asat As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014  31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
- Ringgit Malaysia 8,678,362 10427437 8,345,856 6,786,912
- United States Dollar 6,437,200 476,252 6,437,200 476,252
- Singapore Dollar 1,028,012 191,760 - -
16,143,574 11,095,449 14,783,056 7,263,164

9. AMOUNT OWING BY/TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The immediate holding company is Yusen Logistic Co., Ltd, a company incorporated

in Japan.

The directors regard Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (“NYK”), a company

incorporated in Japan, as the ultimate holding company.

The amount owing by/to the immediate holding company represent trade accounts

which are expected to be settled within the normal credit periods.
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The currency exposure profile of amount owing by immediate holding company is as

follows:

- Ringgit Malaysia

- US Dollar

- Singapore Dollar
- Japanese Yen

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014  31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
2,430,959 3,136,080 2,430,959 3,136,080
318,813 568,067 318,813 568,067
255,496 148,866 255,496 148,866
- 16,493 - 16,493
3,005,268 3,869,506 3,005,268 3,869,506

The currency exposure profile of amounts owing to immediate holding company is as
follows:

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014  31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
- Ringgit Malaysia 7,669 6,139 7,669 6,139
- US Dollar - 1,227 - 1,227
-Japanese Yen 1,548,744 1,803,365 1,548,744 1,803,365
1,556,413 1,810,731 1,556,413 1,810,731

AMOUNTS OWING BY/TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The amounts owing by subsidiary companies comprise:

Company
Asat As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM
Trade accounts 760,326 952,226
Non-interest bearing advances 37,757,755 10,885,542
38,518,081 11,837,768

Included in non-interest bearing advances is payment made on behalf by the Company
amounting to RM24,532,250 (2014: Nil) for the property, plant and equipment
acquired by a subsidiary company.
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Trade accounts
Non-interest bearing advances
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Company
As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
10,809,140 7,451,291
26,638,393 32,889,532
37,447,533 40,340,823

The trade accounts are expected to be settled within the normal credit periods.

Included in non-interest bearing advances is Nil (2014: RMS5,582,188) payable to a
subsidiary company for the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

The non-interest bearing advances are unsecured and receivable/payable on demand.

AMOUNTS OWING BY/TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts owing by/to related companies represent trade accounts which are
expected to be settled within the normal credit periods.

The currency exposure profile of amounts owing by related companies is as follows:

- Ringgit Malaysia

- US Dollar

- Singapore Dollar

- Thai Baht

- Japanese Yen

Asat
31.3.2015
RM

2,553,220
2,194,026
395,776
138,150

Group

Asat
31.3.2014
RM

2,296,366
3,057,012
372,806
129,504
252

5,281,172

5,855,940

Company
As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM
2,553,220 2,296,366
2,194,026 3,057,012
395,776 372,806
138,150 129,504
- 252
5,281,172 5,855,940
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Trade accounts
Non trade account
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Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014  31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
2,830,730 3,345,191 2,830,729 3,345,191
2,800,000 - - -
5,630,730 3,345,191 2,830,729 3,345,191

The non-trade account represent unsecured interest free advances which are repayable

on demand.

The currency exposure profile of amounts owing to related companies is as follows:

Ringgit Malaysia
Singapore dollar
United States Dollar
Thai Baht

Japanese Yen
Australia Dollar
Canada Dollar
Chinese Yuan Renminbi
Euro

Great Britain Pound
Hong Kong Dollar
Indian Rupee

South Korean Won
New Taiwan Dollar
Swedish Krona

AMOUNTS OWING BY/TO ASSOCIATED COMPANY

Group Company
31.3.2015  31.3.2014  31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
2,858,173 615,031 58,172 615,031
769,151 198,453 769,151 198,453
792,759 1,477,231 792,759 1,477,231
120,169 85,955 120,169 85,955
80,753 11,017 80,753 11,017
11,050 4,805 11,050 4,805
611 2,789 611 2,789
339,797 387,090 339,797 387,090
310,031 141,797 310,031 141,797
10,462 9,547 10,462 9,547
252,752 184,403 252,752 184,403
40 2,225 40 2,225
68,693 142,304 68,693 142,304
16,287 76,776 16,287 76,776
2 5,768 2 5,768
5,630,730 3,345,191 2,830,729 3,345,191

The amounts owing by/to the associated company represent trade balances that is
expected to be settled within the normal credit period.
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13.  FIXED DEPOSITS WITH A LICENSED BANK
The effective interest rates of the Group’s and of the Company’s deposits range from

3.05% to 3.25% (31.03.2014: 2.80 % to 3.05%) per annum. All the deposits have
maturities of three months or less.

14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:

Group Company
As at As at As at As at
3132015  31.3.2014 3132015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
- Ringgit Malaysia 16,325,287 16,867,756 11,235,262 13,678,892
- US Dollar 481,089 3,336,806 481,089 3,336,806
- Singapore Dollar 1,088,759 2,321,452 696,379 499,719
~ Thai Baht 85,067 74,193 85,067 74,193

17,980,202 22,600,207 12,497,797 17,589,610

15. SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM
Authorised:
200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
100,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 160,000,000 100,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time
to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company and rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

The Company was given approval by Securities Commission to implement an
Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS™) in 2007 in conjunction with the listing
of the Company’s share on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

To-date, the Company has yet to implement the ESOS.



Company No.: 20218-T Page 54

The main features of the ESOS proposed to be set out in the By-Laws are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The maximum number of new shares which may be issued and allotted shall
not in aggregate exceed fifieen per cent (15%) of the issued and paid-up share
capital of the Company at any point in time during the existence of the ESOS.

To qualify for participation in the ESOS, only employees who are employed
full-time by the Company or its subsidiary companies and executive directors
who:

1) shall have attained the age of eighteen (18) years by the Date of Offer;

(i)  must fall within such other categories and criteria that the ESOS
Comrmnittee may decide from time to time at its absolute discretion;

(iii) must have been employed for a continuous period of at least one (1)
year in the Group and his employment must have been confirmed by
the Date of Offer.

The maximum number of Options to be offered to each eligible employee
shall be at the discretion of the ESOS Committee. In exercising its discretion,
the ESOS Committee shall take into consideration the seniority, performance
and length of service of each eligible employee, subject to the following:

(i) there should be equitable allocation to the various grades of eligible
employees, such that not more than 50% of the shares available under
the ESOS should be allocated, in aggregate, to executive directors and
senior management.

(ii)  not more than 10% of the shares available under the ESOS should be
allocated to any individual director or employee who, either singly or
collectively through persons connected with the director or employee,
holds 20% or more in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company.
For the purposes of these By-Laws, unless the context otherwise
requires, “persons connected with an eligible employee” or “persons
connected with a director” shall have the same meaning given in
relation to persons connected with a director or major shareholder.

The price at which the grantee is entitled to subscribe for each new share shall
be based on five (5) days weighted average market price of the Shares in the
Company preceding the Date of Offer, with a discount that does not exceed
ten per cent (10%) or at the par value of the shares, whichever is higher.
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16.

(e)

®

(g)

All new shares issued pursuant to the exercise of Options will upon such
allotment and issuance rank in pari passu in all respects with the then existing
issued and paid-up shares, save and except that they are not entitled to
dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions whereby the
entitlement date for such dividends, rights, allotments and/or other
distributions is prior to the date of allotment of the new shares. The new
shares will be subject to all the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company in relation to transfer, transmission or otherwise.

The number of shares under option or the exercise price or both, so far as the
option remains unexercised, may be adjusted following any variation in the
issued share capital of the Company by way of rights issue, bonus issue or
other capitalisation issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares or reduction
of capital and other variation of capital of the Company.

The ESOS shall be in force for a period of five (5) years from the effective
date subject however to any extension or renewal for a further period of five
(5) years if the Board deemed fit, upon the recommendation of the ESOS
Committee. Save for any amendments and/or changes to the relevant statutes
guidelines and/or regulations currently in force, no further approval shall be
required for the extension of the ESOS provided that the Company shall serve
appropriate notices on each grantee and/or make necessary announcements to
any/or all the relevant parties within thirty (30) days prior to the expiry of the
ESOS.

BANK TERM LOANS

Group/Company
As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM

The long term bank loans are repayable as follows:
- not later than one year (included under current

liabilities) 17,275,191 11,292,828
- later than one year but not later than five years

(included under non-current liabilities) 37,520,184 12,873,024

54,795,375 24,165,852

The term loans are denominated in US Dollar and are unsecured.
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17.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At beginning of the year

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Transfer (to)/from profit or
loss

Group
As at Asg at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM

8,770,050 8,730,592
191,000 -

(504,325) 39,458

At end of the year

8,456,725 8,770,050
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Company
As at Asat
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM

8,423,532 8,358,425

(592,287) 65,107

7,831,245 8,423,532

The deferred tax liabilities on temporary differences recognised in the financial

statements were as follows:

Tax effects of:

- excess of capital allowances
and lease rental over
accumulated depreciation
on property, plant and
equipment

- surplus on revaluation of
land and buildings

Group

As at As at

31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM

8,130,562 8,424,480

326,163 345,570

8,456,725 8,770,050

Company
As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM

7,831,245 8,423,532

7,831,245 8,423,532
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18.

19.

TRADE PAYABLES

The currency exposure profile of trade payables is as follows:

- Ringgit Malaysia
- Singapore Dollar
- Thai Baht

- US Dollar

- Japanese Yen

- Chinese Yuan Renminbi

- Euro
- Norwegian Krone

Page 58

The credit terms extended normally range between 15 and 60 days.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

Other sundry payables,
deposits and accruals

Group Company
Asat As at As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
26,998,438 35,491,622 25,877,921 30,413,478
1,290,392 1,100,238 18,827 27,272
3,192 136,253 3,192 136,253
122,346 109,332 122,346 109,332
16,601 - 16,601 -
3,702 18,244 3,702 18,244
1,919 5,208 1,919 5,208
13,681 18,701 13,681 18,701
28,450,271 36,879,508 26,058,189 30,728,488
Group Company
As at As at As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
29,844,863 22,953,050 24,841,422 21,104,086
29,844 863 22,953,050 24,841,422 21,104,086
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20.
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The currency exposure profile of other payables, deposits and accruals is as follows:

Group
As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
- Ringgit Malaysia 29,612,008 22,241,975
- Singapore Dollar 232,855 711,075

Company
As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM

24,841,422 21,104,086

29,844,863 22,953,050

24,841,422 21,104,086

HIRE PURCHASE AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Total future installments payable

Total outstanding principal

Future installments payable

- not later than one year

Total future installments payable
Outstanding principal

- not later than one year (included under

current liabilities)

Total outstanding principal

Group/Company
As at As at
31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM

13,127

- 13,127

- 13,127

- 13,127

- 13,127

13,127

The effective interest rates of the hire purchase is Nil (31.03.2014: 2.52% to 3.45%)

per annuin.
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21.

22.

REVENUE
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Revenue represents the invoiced value of transportation and related services rendered.

OTHER INCOME

Gross dividends from

- associated company

- unquoted investments

Interest income

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Realised gain on foreign
exchange

Unrealised gain on foreign
exchange

Operating lease income from
land and buildings

Sundry income

Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
- - 653,153 1,088,588
- 74,298 - 74,298
799,165 939,372 799,165 939,372
156,259 411,563 135,859 387.563
610,427 132,381 610,427 132,381
274,577 - 274,577 -
307,500 394,500 307,500 394,500
1,122,725 245,044 703,008 28,204
3,270,653 2,197,158 3,483,689 3,044,906
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23.

24.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations is stated
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
- statutory audit
- review of quarterly financial
statements
Allowance for doubtful debts
Depreciation
Directors’ remuneration
- fees
- other emoluments
Impairment loss on other
investments
Loss on disposal of investment
in quoted shares
Property, plant and equipment
written off
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings
- trucks
- forklifts
- office equipment

FINANCE COSTS

Interest paid or payable on
- hire purchase
- term loans
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Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM EM RM RM
172,290 144.063 84,256 77,500
68,000 85,000 68,000 85,000
421,335 738,828 421,335 738,828
16,716,676 19,781,653 16,214,040 19,424,311
96,000 247,000 96,000 247,000
3,622,531 3,348,378 3,325,091 3,006,142
45,000 - 45,000 -
- 8,968 - 8,968
- 30,402 “ 30,402
11,037,403 13,679,175 10,005,264 11,369,256
3,720,519 5,361,931 1,973,602 2,633,054
1,987,705 2,153,936 1,807,413 1,972,687
643,087 776,176 634,673 771,888

Group Company

Year 15 months 15 month
ended ended Year ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
- 8,496 - 8,496
1,356,327 1,461,644 844,369 1,461,644
1,359,327 1,470,140 844,369 1,470,140
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25.

TAX EXPENSE
Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015  31.3.2014
Malaysian tax based on RM RM RM RM
results for the year/period
- current 11,750,634 11,482,014 11,000,000 10,743,288
- deferred 434480  (228,232) 350,013 (202,583)

12,185,114 11,253,782 11,350,013 10,540,705
Under/(Over) provision in

prior years
- current (591,475) 27,229 (558,031) 26,813
- deferred (938,805) 267,690 (942,300} 267,690

10,654,834 11,548,701 9,849,682 10,835,208

The provision for taxation differs from the amount of taxation determined by applying
the applicable statutory tax rate to the profit before tax excluding share of results of
associates analysed as follows:

Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015  31.3.2014 31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
Accounting profit 40,834,608 41,439,585 39,530,450 39,812,719
Taxation at applicable
statutory tax rate of 25% 10,208,652 10,359,896 0,882,613 9,953,180
Tax effects arising from:
- non-deductible expenses 1,911,380 911,392 1,664,653 859,672
- non-taxable income (33,964) - (197,253) (272,147)
Realisation of deferred tax
benefits previously not
recognised - (19,885) - -
Deferred tax benefits not
recognised 41,068 - - -
Effect of different tax rate in
another country 57,978 2,379 - -
Under/(Over) provision in
prior years (1,530,280) 294,919 (1,500,331) 294,503

10,654,834 11,548,701 9,849,682 10,835,208
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The following temporary differences exist at the end of the financial year the deferred
tax benefits of which have not been recognised in the financial statements:

Group Company
Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
Unabsorbed tax losses 2,810,902 2,569,325 - -

The Company is on the single tier income tax system. Accordingly the entire retained
earnings of the Company are available for distribution by way of dividends without
incurring additional tax liability.

26. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the Group’s profit for the
year/period attributable to owners of the Company of RM30,680,795 (31.3.2014:
RM30,409,124) by the number of shares in issue of 100,000,000 (31.03.2014:
100,000,000).

27.  DIVIDENDS

Year Year
ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012:
- Final dividend of 6.67 sen per share less 25% tax - 5,002,496
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2014:
- Interim dividend of 5.34 sen per share less 25% tax - 4,004,999
- Final single tier dividend of 5.00 sen per share 5,000,000 -
In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015:
- Interim single tier dividend of 4.00 sen per share 4,000,000 -

9,000,000 9,007,495
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28.  PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group Company
Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 3132015  31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM

Aggregate cost of property,

plant and equipment

acquired 54,383,485 31,801,079 19,162,897 26,226,962
Unpaid balance included

under others payables

(Note 19) (2,870,316) - (2,870,316) -
Total cash paid during the
financial year/period 51,513,169 31,801,079 16,292,581 26,226,962
29. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014  31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM

Employee benefits expense 80,017,468 81,705,491 60,211,863 61,217,837

Included in the employee benefits expense are EPF confributions amounting to
RM6,056,725 (31.3.2014: RM6,434,113) for the Group and RM3,911,218
(31.3.2014: RM4,409,042) for the Company.

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company is a subsidiary company of Yusen Logistics Co. Ltd, a company
incorporated Japan. The directors regard Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (“NYK™), a
company incorporated in Japan, as the ultimate holding company.

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to
the Group if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa or where the Group or the Company and the
party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or other entities.
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Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel
include all directors of the Group, and certain members of senior management of the

Group.

Significant related party transactions during the financial year/period were as follows:

--- Transaction value ---
Company
Year 15 months
ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
Transactions with subsidiary
companies
Rental of trucks paid and 659,133 567,150
payable
Labour charges paid and 20,414,622 21,538,497
payable
Rental of premises paid and
payables 1,389,577 -
Maintenance charges paid and
payable 6,558,603 06,105,673
Handling fees paid and payable 1,515,500 1,476,940
Related logistic services paid - 26,630
Handling fees received and
receivable 116,273 545,837
Related logistics services
received and receivable 3,732,750 4,438,477
Rental of premises received 76,000 120,000
Rental of trucks received and
receivable 4,842,870 4,159,420

-- Balance outstanding --

Company
Asat As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
44 900 137,070
3,496,435 3,511,009
692,517 -
3,098,188 1,680,866
3,628,172 2,122,346
129,089 24,380
459,922 257,748
- 326,298
145,000 343,800
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31.

32.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Directors

Short-term employee benefits
- salary, bonus and allowances
Post-employment benefits

- EPF

Other key management
personnel

Short-term employee benefits
- salary, bonus and allowances
Post-employment benefits

- EPF

Total compensation

Page 67

Group Company
Year 15 months Year 15 months
ended ended Ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
3,315,301 3,056,470 3,017,861 2,714,234
307,230 291,908 307,230 291,908
3,622,531 3,348,378 3,325,091 3,006,142
1,010,960 1,073,000 1,010,960 1,073,000
69,066 74,214 69,066 74,214
1,080,026 1,147,214 1,080,026 1,147,214
4,702,557 4,495,592 4,405,117 4,153,356

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group leases land/buildings and warehouses from its associated company and
third parties under cancellable operating lease arrangements. These leases typically
run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years with the option to renew. None of the leases
include contingent rents. There are no restrictions placed on the Group by entering

into these leases.
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33.

34.
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The Group also leases an office cum warehouse under a non-cancellable operating
lease arrangement with initial period of 2 to 3 years. The future aggregate minimum
lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease contracted for as at the
reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Group Company

Year 15 months Year 15 months

ended ended ended ended

31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

RM RM RM RM

Not later than one year 1,128,600 2,664,218 1,128,600 2,664,218
Later than one year but not later than

5 years 846,450 1,975,050 846,450 1,975,050

1,975,050 4,639,268 1,975,050 4,639,268

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out its motor vehicles under cancellable operating lease

arrangement to a third party.

OTHER COMMITMENTS
Group Company
Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM RM RM
Authorised and contracted for
acquisition of property, plant
and equipment 4,710,064 32,557,950 4,710,064 3,770,497
ACQUISITION OF SHARES IN NEW SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
Details of new subsidiary company acquired are as follows:
Group’s
Purchase  effective Effective
Name of subsidiary company acquired  consideration interest acquisition
RM % date
2015
Titian Pelangi Sdn Bhd 7,280,000 100 6 November 2014
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Detail of the assets, liabilities and net cash inflow arising from the acquisition of new
subsidiary company were as follows:

2015

RM

Property, plants and equipment 9,821,656

Trade and other receivables 399,910

Cash and cash equivalents 106,176
Other payables and accruals (247,742)
Amount owing to related company (2,800,000)

Net assets acquired/ total purchase consideration 7,280,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired (106,176)

Net cash outflow on acquisition during the year 7,173,824

The revenue and net profit for the year in which the acquisitions took place and their
post acquisitions contribution included in the consolidated profit or loss were as

follows:

2015

RM

Revenue
For the financial year 760,000
Pre-acquisition (445,000)
Post-acquisition 315,000
Net profit for the year
For the financial year 342,181
Pre-acquisition (230,217)

Post-acquisition 111,964
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As at 31.3.2015 Loans and  Available-
Group receivables for-sale Total
RM RM RM
Financial assets
Assets as per statement of financial
position
Other investments - 1,159,104 1,159,104
Trade receivables 83,114,096 - 83,114,096
Other receivables excluding 13,850,672 - 13,850,672
prepayments
Amounts owing by immediate holding
company 3,005,268 3,005,268
Amounts owing by related companies 5,281,172 - 5281,172
Fixed deposits with a licensed banks 39,101,118 - 39,101,118
Cash and bank balances 17,980,202 - 17,980,202
Total financial assets 162,332,528 1,159,104 163,491,632
As at 31.3.2014
Group
Financial assets
Assets as per statement of financial
position
Other investments - 1,204,104 1,204,104
Trade receivables 81,992,279 - 81,992.279
Other receivables excluding 8,318,179 - 8,318,179
prepayments
Amounts owing by immediate holding
company 3,869,506 - 3,869,506
Amounts owing by related companies 5,855,940 - 5,855,940
Amount owing by associated company 54,037 - 54,037
Fixed deposits with a licensed banks 29,861,167 - 29,861,167
Cash and bank balances 22,600,207 - 22,600,207
1,204,104 153,755,419

Total financial assets 152,551,315
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As at 31.3.2015
Group

Financial liabilities

Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals and derivatives
Amounts owing to immediate holding company
Amounts owing to related companies

Bank term loans

Amount owing to associated company

Tetal financial liabilities

As at 31.3.2014
Group

Financial liabilities

Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals and derivatives
Amounts owing to immediate holding company
Amounts owing to related companies

Bank term loans

Hire purchase and finance lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Available-
for-sale
RM

1,159,104
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At amortised

cost
RM

28,450,271
29,844,863
1,556,413
5,630,730
54,795,375
94,448

36,879,598
22,953,050
1,810,731
3,345,191
24,165,852
13,127

1,159,104
78,471,605

As at 31.3.2015 Loans and
Company receivables
RM
Financial assets
Assets as per statement of financial
position

Other investments -
Trade receivables 78,471,605
Other receivables excluding prepayments 12,711,566
Amounts owing by immediate holding

company 3,005,268
Amounts owing by subsidiaries companies 38,518,081
Amounts owing by related companies 5,281,172
Fixed deposits with a licensed banks 39,101,118
Cash and bank balances 12,497,797

Total financial assets

- 12,711,566

3,005,268
- 38,518,081
- 5,281,172
- 39,101,118
- 12,497,797

189,586,607

1,159,104 190,745,711
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As at 31.3.2014
Company

Financial assets

Assets as per staterent of financial
position

Other investments

Trade receivables

Other receivables excluding prepayments

Amounts owing by immediate holding

company

Amounts owing by subsidiaries companies

Amounts owing by related companies

Amount owing by associated company

Fixed deposits with a licensed banks

Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets

As at 31.3.2015
Company

Financial liabilities
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Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals and derivatives

Amounts owing to immediate holding
company

Amounts owing to subsidiary companies

Amounts owing to related companies

Bank term loans

Amount owing to associated company

Total financial liabilities

Loans and Available-
recelvables for-sale Total
RM RM RM
- 1,204,104 1,204,104
75,192,643 - 75,192,643
4,862,060 - 4,862,060
3,869,506 - 3,869,506
11,837,768 - 11,837,768
5,855,940 - 5,855,940
54,037 - 54,037
29,861,167 - 29,861,167
17,589,610 - 17,589,610
149,122,731 1,204,104 150,326,835
At amortised
cost
RM
26,058,189
24,841,422
1,556,413
37,447,533
2,830,729
54,795,375
94,448

147,624,109
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(b)

As at 31.3.2014
Company

Financial liabilities

Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals and derivatives
Amounts owing to immediate holding company
Amounts owing to subsidiary companies
Amounts owing to related companies

Bank term loans

Hire purchase and finance lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Fair value of financial instruments
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At amortised
cost
RM

30,728,488
21,104,086
1,810,731
40,340,823
3,345,191
24,165,852
13,127

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an

arm's length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments of the Group and of the
Company at the reporting date approximate their fair values except for the

following:

As at 31.3.2015

Other investments

Unquoted shares

Transferable corporate club memberships
Term loans - fixed rate

As at 31.3.2014

Other investments

Unguoted shares

Transferable corporate club memberships
Term loans - fixed rate

Group/Company

Carrying Fair
amount Value
RM RM
302,701 *
856,403 *
54,795,375 55,037,206
347,701 *
856,403 *
24,165,852 24,129,595

* Tt is not practical to estimate the fair value of the unquoted shares and
the transferable corporate club memberships due to lack of comparable
quoted market prices and inability to estimate fair value without
incurring excessive costs. Such investments are valued at cost subject

to review of impairment.
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36.

The following summarises the methods used in determining the fair value of
financial instruments:

Derivatives

Fair values of forward currency contracts and swap contracts have been
determined by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with
similar maturity profiles.

(c) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

e Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

¢ Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31.3.2015

Group/Company Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM RM RM RM

Financial assets

Derivative financial assets
(note 8) - 6,437,200 - 6,437,200

As at 31.3.2014

Financial assets
Derivative financial assets

(note 8) 476,252 - 476,252

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 for the financial year,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including foreign
currency exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity and cash flow risks
arising in the normal course of the Group’s businesses.
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The directors monitor the Group’s financial position closely with an objective to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The
directors review and agree on policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sale of services, purchases and
borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional
currencies of the Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Japanese Yen, U.S. Dollar (USD) and Singapore Dollar.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. Most
of the forward exchange contracts have maturities of less than one year after the
reporting date.

The principal amount of the Group’s USD loan has been fully hedged using a
currency swap contract with a bank. For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the
ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss.

The currency exposures are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial
statements.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on the outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items of the Group as at reporting date. If the US Dollar
strengthens or weakens by 5% against the Company’s functional currency with all
other variables held constant, the Company profit after tax and equity would increase
or decrease by RM412,779 (31.3.2014: RM280,016).

The other foreign currency denominated monetary items as at reporting date are not
material, hence the sensitivity analysis has not been presented.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposures arise from the Group’s fixed
deposits, hire purchase and finance lease liabilities and bank borrowings.

Surplus funds are placed with licensed banks, which generate interest income to the
Group. The Group manages its interest rate risk by placing such balances on short
tenures of three months or less.
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A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on the outstanding floating rate of
borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2015. If interest rates increase or decrease by
50 basis points, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit after tax
would decrease or increase by approximately RM86,624 (31.3.2014: RM162,527), as
a result of higher or lower interest expense on these borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise from the possibility that a counterparty
may be unable to meet the terms of a contract in which the Group has a gain position.

The Group’s management has a credit policy in place to ensure that transactions are
conducted with creditworthy counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk arising from sales made on deferred terms is managed through
the application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an
ongoing basis. If necessary, the Group may obtain collaterals from counterparties as a
means of mitigating losses in the event of default.

The Group seeks to invest its surplus cash safely by depositing them with licensed
financial nstitutions.

As at the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables
is represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

Apart from a customer of the Company, the Company does not have significant credit
risk exposure to any single debtor or any group of debtors. The amount due from the
said customer amounted to RM15.5 million (31.3.2014: RM21.0 million) or 20%
(31.3.2014: 25%) of gross trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.

Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired are stated at their realisable values. A significant portion of these
receivables are regular customers who have been transacting with the Group. The
Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the receivables. Any
receivables having significant balances past due more than 90 days, which are deemed
to have higher credit risk, are monitored individually.

The ageing analysis of receivables at 31 March which are trade in nature is as follows:

Group Company
Asat31.3.2015 Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
RM RM RM RM
Not past due 52,507,632 - 48,686,197 -
Less than 30 days past due 5,572,513 - 5,204,792 -
Between 30 and 90 days past due 13,258,407 - 12,805,072 -
More than 90 days past due 14,445,167 2,669,623 14,445,167 2,669,623

85,783,719 2,669,623 81,141,228 2,669,623
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Group Company

Asat31.3.2014 Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
RM RM RM RM

Not past due 31,121,953 - 30,678,270 -
Less than 30 days past due 34,677,464 - 29,369,898 -
Between 30 and 90 days past due 14,306,561 - 13,954,762 -
More than 90 days past due 4,134,589 2,248,288 3,438,001 2,248,288
84,240,567 2,248,288 77,440,931 2,248,288

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables during the

year were!

At 142014
Additions of allowance for doubtful debts

At31.3.2015
A1 1.1.2013
Additions of allowance for doubtful debts

At31.3.2014

Liquidity and cash flow risks

Group  Company
RM RM
2,248,288 2,248,288
421,335 421,335
2,669,623 2,669,623
1,509,460 1,509,460
738,828 738,828
2,248288 2,248,288

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in
meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds.

The Group seeks to ensure all business units maintain optimum levels of liquidity at
all times, sufficient for their operating, investing and financing activities.

Therefore, the policy seeks to ensure that each business unit, through efficient
working capital management (i.e. accounts receivable and accounts payable
management), must be able to convert its current assets into cash to meet all demands

for payment as and when they fall due.

Owing to the nature of its businesses, the Group seeks to maintain sufficient credit
lines to meet its liquidity requirements while ensuring an effective working capital

management within the Group.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group and the Company’s
financial liabilities at 31 March based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at31.3.2015

Group

Trade payables

Other payables, deposit and
accruals

Amount owing to immediate
holding company

Amount owing to related
companies

Amount owing to associated
company

Borrowings

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

Asat31.3.2015

Company

Trade payables

Other payables, deposit and
accruals

Amount owing to immediate
holding company

Amount owing to subsidiary
conipanies

Amount owing to related
companies

Amount owing to associated
company

Borrowings

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

Less than 1 More than
year | to5 years 5 years Total
RM RM RM RM
28,450,271 - - 28,450,271
29,844,863 - - 29,844,863
1,556,413 - - 1,556,413
5,630,730 - - 5,630,730
94,448 - - 94,448
17,275,191 39,900,530 - 57,175,721
82,851,916 39,900,530 - 122,752,446

Less than 1 More than
year 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
RM RM RM RM
26,058,189 - - 26,058,189
24,841,422 - - 24,841,422
1,556,413 - - 1,556,413
37,447,533 - - 37,447,533
2,830,729 - - 2,830,729
94,448 - - 94,448
17,275,191 39,900,530 - 57,175,721
110,103,925 39,900,530 - 150,004,455
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Asat31.3.2014

Group

Trade payables

Other payables, deposit and
accruals

Amount owing to immediate
holding company

Amount owing to related
companies

Hire purchase and finance
lease liabilities

Borrowings

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

Asat31.3.2014

Company

Trade payables

Other payables, deposit and
accruals

Amount owing to immediate
holding company

Amount owing to subsidiary
companies

Amount owing to related
companies

Hire purchase and finance
lease liabilities

Borrowings

Total undiscounted financial
liabilities
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Less than 1 More than
year 1 to5 years 5 years Total
RM RM RM RM
36,879,598 - - 36,879,598
22,953,050 - - 22,953,050
1,810,731 1,810,731
3,345,191 - - 3,345,191
13,127 - - 13,127
11,292,828 11,436,783 2,447.880 25,177,491
76,294,525 11,436,783 2,447,880 90,179,188

Less than 1 More than
year 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
RM RM RM RM
30,728,488 - - 30,728,488
21,104,086 - - 21,104,086
1,810,731 1,810,731
40,340,823 - - 40,340,823
3,345,191 - - 3,345,191
13,127 - - 13,127
11,292,828 11,436,783 2,447,880 25,177,491
108,635,274 11,436,783 2,447,880 122,519,937
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The Group’s primary objectives when managing its capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide adequate returns to
shareholders whilst sustaining future development of the business.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure with a
view {0 optimising the debt and equity balance. The Group monitors capital on the
basis of total debt to equity ratio. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, issue new shares,

increase borrowings or sell assets to reduce debts.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the period.

The Group’s total debt- to- equity ratios at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 were as

follow:

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Hire purchase liabilities
Short term borrowings
Long term borrowings

Total debt

Total debt to equity ratio (times)

As at As at
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
RM RM
100,000,000 100,000,000
199,097,303 177,132,680
299,097,303 277,132,680
- 13,127

17,275,191 11,292,828
37,520,184 12,873,024
54,795,375 24,178,979
0.18 0.09




789°L6L°0€E - - - - - 189K 21y} 103 1301

(F€8°759°01) - - - - - asuadxo Xe]
9IS TSH 1Y - - - - - XB) 910599 1JOI]
(Lzei6se’l) - - - - - 51500 SOUBUL]
806°L19 - - - - - syyoud s, Aueduios
PAJBIOOSSE JO 2IBYS
SE6'C61°TY - - - - - suonesedo woy Njorg
(F0£'8€6°1) - - - - - swoour s1eI0dios pajeoofjeun
6ETTEL VY 89T 61V oSy IvI‘l 167°96¢€ 97£°€86°6€ 10L°161°T sjnset Juswigog
SLINSTA
EV1°G0E oy €S0°86S°t  0EL°ESS OV ¢I11°0€0°08 668°61°66C  SPE 0L 0T $9JES [EUIAIXY
AONIATHE
WY WY WY WY WA WY
paYEpI[0SUOD) OO 140 ar a1o 11V S107°€'1€ POpUD TBa

"SOINIQRI| PUB S30SSE JUAWTIS U0 SPBW 21 S2INSO{ISIP OU 20USH
Juswageuew ay) 03 Aprendal papiaoid Jou suodar JuswaSeuriy [BUIUL St U PAPRIIUL JOUNSY 218 UOLBULIOJUI SANI[IGRI] Pue s1esse Juawdag

§32]AI3S UOIEPI[OSUOD JaAng - (.JND0,,) UOISIAL
JuswsFeuBy Jopus A pue 12p1Q) od1e) WSO (1
Buipremio] JS1al] veg - (.. 190,,) uolsiAIg Burpremio, WS, uesn (A1)
Supjonu, - («QL,) uotsIALq Suryoni],  (111)
$901A195 onsISo] oy
pue o8e|ney Jourejuoo ‘Fursnoyaiem Burpiemlo] suroysny) - (T1D,,) UOISIAI( So1sIS0T 0BNUOYD ()
Surpremiog WBrayry - («ddV.,) UOISIAL( SuIpremio, WSIer] 1y Q)

isyuswidas urew XIs ojul pasiuedio ase dnoan oy Jo suonesado ot |y

wswdes ssoulsnq - yeurio] Funroder Areuwn g (®)

SISATVNV TVLINIWODES '8¢

18 23ed 1-8120C -"oN Aueduwo)




‘sjusdes [eoyderdoad onroads 0} §198SE PUB SNUIASI 9Je0O[fe 0} [NFSUIULOUI IT JOPISU0D
10U Op SI01031P Ay} ‘plIoM ) INOYSNOIY) Paed0] SUOHBUNSIP ISA0D SaljIAIOR suonnjos sonsido] [e10) s.dnoin oy sy

juowdos [earyderdoas - jewrof Sunzodor Arepuoosag (q)

"$9]BS JUDWISSIAIUT OU ST 1Y |,

Sz 115°0¢

- - potiad a3 1oy 1§01

(10L°8¥S°11)
975090y

- asuadys xe |
- - XE) 210J2q J1JOI]

(ov1'oLt'1) - - §1500 30URUL]

176079 - - - - - syyoud s Aueduios
PRIBIOOSSE JO 2IRYS
STL606°TY - - - - - suonesodo wolj Jijoig
066°SLE] } . - - - awroout ajerodiod pajeooleun
SEL'EES Y 856°69L 966°TF6'] 657806 671°579°¢E £61°L89Y synsal juswsag
SLTINSTA
TEELT19°66S 805990 LEGDOS LY vZS0LTT6 9€5°687°65T  LTB 16V ST S9[Ees [BLIRY
HOANTATY
WY WY WH WY W WY
pajEpl[osuo) WO0 440 at a1 44V PL0T'C 1€ PApUL SYUOW G|

78 98eq J1-8120¢ "oN Aueduwo)



Company No.: 20218-T Page 83

39. COMPARATIVES

The following comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current
year's presentation:

As previously
stated Reclassification As restated

Statements of Financial Position

Group/Company
Current assets

Amount owing by related

companies 0,725,446 (3,869,506) 5,855,940
Amount owing by immediate

holding company - 3,869,506 3,869,506

Current liabilities

Amount owing to related

companies 5,155,922 (1,810,731) 3,345,191
Amount owing to immediate

holding company - 1,810,731 1,810,731

40.  AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue on by the board of directors on
18 May 2015,
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41.  SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON THE DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND
UNREALISED PROFITS/LOSSES

The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and the Company as at 31 March, into
realised and unrealised profits/losses, pursuant to the directive, are as follows:

Group Company

As at As at As at As at

31.3.2015 31.3.2014 31.3.2015 31.3.2014

RM RM RM RM

Total retained profits of the
Company and its subsidiaries:-

- Realised 216,777,823 191,788,303 179,335,574 159,521,670

- Unrealised (7,855,984)  (8,424,479)  (7,556,668) (8,423,532)

208,921,839 183,363,824 171,778,906 151,098,138
Total shares of retained profits

from associated company:-
- Realised 1,147,719 1,182,964 - -
- Unrealised - - - -

210,069,558 184,546,788 171,778,906 151,098,138
Less: Consolidation adjustments (13,268,286}  (9,426,311) - -

Total Group’s and Company’s
retained profits as per statements
of financial position 196,801,272 175,120,477 171,778,906 151,098,138

The determination of realised and unrealised profits or losses is compiled based on
Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Securities Main Market Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Accordingly, the unrealised retained profits of the Group as disclosed above excludes
translation gains and losses on monetary items denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency and foreign exchange contracts, as these gains or losses are incurred in
the ordinary course of business of the Group, and are hence deemed as realised.

The disclosure of realised and unrealised profits/losses above is solely for complying with
the disclosure requirements stipulated in the directive of Bursa Securities and should not
be used for any other purposes.



Company No.: 20218-T Page 85

TASCO BERHAD
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act 1965

In the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 11 to 83 have
been drawn up:

(a) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company at 31 March 2015 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
year ended 31 March 2015;

(b)  in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial
Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act 1965.

The information set out in Note 41 have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance on
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profit or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements as
issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Signed on behalf of the directors in accordance
with a directors’ resolution dated

19 MAY 2015

LEE CHECK POH LIMJT KIAT
Director rector
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TASCO BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act 1965

I, Tan Kim Yong (IC No. 620120-10-6609), being the director primarily responsible for the
financial management of TASCO Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best
of my knowledge and belief, the financial statements set out on pages 11 to 83 are correct.

And I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by
virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared at )
Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory )
this )
18 MAY 2015 %

)

TAN KIM YONG
Before me:

Commissioner for Qaths

NO. 102 & 104 15t FLOOR BANGUNAN
PERSATUAN YAP SELANGOR
JALAN TUN HS LEE
50000 KUALA LUMPUR



